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CHAIR MOLINA: .. , (gavel) . .. The Committee of the Whole meeting for October 31, 2006 is now in session.
For the record we have in attendance the Committee Vice-Chair Dain Kane; Committee Members
Danny Mateo, Joe Pontanilla, Charmaine Tavares, and Robert Carroll. Excused is Councilmember
Anderson.
Members, we have several items on our agenda today for this Halloween Tuesday, which by the way I'd
like to greet and wish all of you a very special Halloween and to those of you in our audience today.
Before we proceed with our agenda items, the Chair will give the public an opportunity to testify, but
even before we do that, the Chair would like to recognize Committee Staff. We have our Committee
Secretary, Clarita Balala, and our Committee Analyst, Richelle Kawasaki Lu in our presence today.
The Chair would like to go over a few ground rules before we begin public testimony. You'll be given
three minutes to testify with a minute to conclude. Please state your name and any organization that you
may be representing.
First to testify we have Norma Barroga to be followed by Mayor Alfredo R. [sic] Valdez, Jr.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. BARROGA: Council [sic] Chair, Mr. Michael Molina, Vice-Chair, Mr. Dain Kane, and Members of the
Council, my name is Norma Barroga and I'm the President of the Binhi At Ani, and good morning to all
of you. Thank you very much for this opportunity to speak before you concerning the sister-city
relationship with the Municipality of San Nicolas, Province of Ilocos Norte, Republic of the Philippines.
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And I'd like to quote a part of the Resolution No. 2005-109 from the Office of the Sangguniang Bayan
Municipality of San Nicolas, Province of Ilocos Norte, Philippines, and I think you have a copy in front
of you - Whereas, the establishment of a Sister-CitylMunicipality relationship with the City of Maui
will not only boIs ... bolster and enhance the advancement of business and trade between the two places
but more importantly, develop a well founded cooperation and friendship and uplift their socio-cultural
well-being. I researched some, some literature that's available out there in the whole nation and I read
about the positive advantages that sister-cities relationship can offer to both places. So I can't see any
disadvantages to it so I would like to respectfully ask Members of this Council for your support and
approval of the resolution before you today. Again, thank you very much, Council [sic] Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Barroga. Committee Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you. Next to testify we have Mayor Alfredo P. Valdez, Jr. to be followed by Fred
Dagdag.
MR. VALDEZ: Good morning, Council Members.
CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning, Mayor.
MR. VALDEZ: My name is Alfredo Valdez, Jr., Mayor of San Nicolas, Ilocos Norte, Philippines. I'd like to
thank you for this opportunity to speak before you this morning regarding the sister-city resolution
between the County of Maui and my municipality, San Nicolas. One of the purposes of the sister-cities
program is to promote economic sustainability. I believe in the mission of the program which is to
strengthen relationships and be a vital force for multi-cultural and economic growth and understanding
in the community. The sister-cities program was initiated by President Dwight D. Eisenhower in 1956
and Maui County is one of nearly 2,500 communities in 126 countries involved in Sister-Cities
International and has been coordinating student, educational, cultural, and economic development
exchange programs since 1964. The County of Maui has received our best overall program award from
Sister-Cities International in the category of a population of 100,000 to 300,000 people. The
international award recognizes an outstanding sister-city for its effective program administration where
ideas of exchange offer. .. exchanges offered and the overall efforts to improve international cooperation
and understanding. The sister-cities program fosters international culture and educational exchanges as
well as trade ties. This honor belongs to everyone in the County ofMaui and you should all be proud of
this distinguished award and our ... and your County's initiatives to build bridges by sharing goodwill
around the globe. This award shows that this is an excellent program and we should ... we would like to
be a part of it.
Maui County's most recent sister-cities program highlight was the 14-day goodwill visit to the Republic
of the Philippines led by Mayor Alan Arakawa in April. The Mayor and 102 delegates from Maui
County, including Maui First Lady, Ann Arakawa; Maui County Dev ... Department of Housing and
Human Concerns Deputy Director, Herman Andaya; Maui County Filip . . . Community Council
President, Fred Dagdag; Mrs. Maui Filipina 2006, Myrna Baggao Breen; and Mrs. Sakada International
2006 Candidate, Angelina Deocares, visited member cities of the Maui County sister-cities program in
Ilocos Region. Among them were Municipalites of Sarrat and Bacarra in Ilocos Norte and Cabugao and
Santa [sic] in Ilocos Sur, and concluded his visit in Tagaytay and Manila. May I also add that the
delegation also visited our municipality where we offered ... we showed them our culture and then ...
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had fun together. Lunch ... where we gave a banquet for the delegation of the County of Maui. The
goodwill visit reinforces strong historic and cultural economic ties, as well as to reaffirm the friendship,
goodwill, and diplomatic relationship between Maui ...
MS. KAWASAKI: Three minutes.
MR. VALDEZ: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: You have another minute to conclude, Mayor.
MR. VALDEZ: Yeah. I humbly ask for your support and approve the sister-cities resolution between San
Nicolas, my municipality, and the County ofMaui. Thank you. Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mayor Valdez. Committee Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you.
MR. VALDEZ: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify we have Fred Dagdag to be followed by David Frazier.
MR. DAGDAG: Good morning, Council Chairperson, Mike Molina, and Council Members. My name is Fred
Dagdag, President of the Maui Filipino Community Council. Thank you very much for this opportunity
to speak before you concerning the sister-cities relationship between the County of Maui and San
Nicolas. It is my understanding that the purpose of the sister-cities relationship program is to enhance
international understanding and friendship through educational, cultural, and humanitarian activities
involving the exchange of ideas and experiences directly among people of different countries and
diverse culture. It will cooperate with any and all other organizations which are of similar nature and
purpose.
The sister-cities relationship program is dedicated to enhancing a cross-cultural
communications within its community and across communities and nations. Tolerance and mutual
understanding are central themes. This sister-city relationship program foster the basic values and goals
of its founder, President Dwight Eisenhower, one person, one dream, and one world. The sister-cities
program focuses on promoting economic ties while strengthening cultural understanding. By building
friendships between the residents and governments of and our proposed sister-cities, we promote a
positive image of the County of Maui and the U.S., educate our citizens about the world and its
diversity, promote the cross-cultural understanding, strengthen our economics . . . economy through
business alliance, and promote democracy and nation building through government to government
exchanges. I ask you for your support to approve the sister-cities relationship resolution between the
Maui County and San Nicolas, Hocos Norte, Philippines. Thank you very much for supporting this
resolution.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Dagdag. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none. Thank you. Next to testify we have David Frazier to be followed by Elizabeth Ayson, and before
we begin the testimony, the Chair would like to recognize the presence of Councilmember Hokama.
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MR. FRAZIER: Aloha. Good morning, Council Members. Thank you for giving me just a moment or two to

speak this morning. My name is David Frazier and I am President of the Kihei Community Association
and speaking on behalf of the Kihei Community Association Board this morning. I was here last week
encouraging you to get Item No. 06-262, which is the Option Agreement for the Kihei High School that
we've been working very diligently with Mr. Dowling on to try to get a situation with the Department of
Education where we can actually build a high school, build a turnkey, and have it actually happen in our
lifetimes down in Kihei. And I'm really here this morning just to say that we really would appreciate all
of your attention to this and to work with the Administration and get this Option Agreement all the way
completed so that Mr. Dowling can have the opportunity to take it before the Legislature in December
and that we can have an opportunity to hopefully actually get this high school, get a shovel in the
ground, and start working on this high school. And just one other side note on that is that we're also
excited about the potential for combining this effort with the police station which we also hope is gonna
appear fully funded in the budget for next year for Kihei as well. And so we're excited about that
prospect and I really appreciate your time this morning. Just wanted to underline our interest in making
Kihei a much wholer [sic] community by finally, finally getting this much, much needed school
completed, constructed, and having all of the amenities that we should have had many, many years ago
in Kihei for the high school students. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Frazier. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none. Thank you. Next to testify we have Elizabeth Ayson and she's the last person that has signed up
to testify. Chair will give the public one last opportunity to sign up for public testimony. And before
you start your testimony, Ms. Ayson, the Chair would like to recognize the presence of Council member
Johnson. Proceed.
MS. AYSON: Aloha, mabuhay, and good morning, Council [sic] Chair, Mike Molina, Council [sic]
Vice-Chair, Dain Kane, I'm so happy to be with you this morning. Today I come as a representative of
the children of San Nicolas of which I am one. Specifically, our organization is called Annak Ti San
Nicolas and I serve as a Director and its Press Secretary. My mother was born and raised in San
Nicolas. She came to Maui in 1946 with my dad, Antonio, and myself, age 4, and my brother, age 2.
We were part of a very large contingent that came to work in Puunene at HC&S. My dad was a
mechanic and he fixed those huge tractors and giant turnahaulers [sic]. My mother was a seamstress.
She grew orchids and she was a magician in the garden. Thus, we were very well nourished and dressed
in the best that she could craft from rice bags and the scrap fabrics from her sewing business. This is our
life in childhood.
My brother and I graduated from Puunene School and then Baldwin High School; our sister, Gloria, was
born at Puunene Hospital. Today all of us are college graduates. Gloria is now a dancer and a music
teacher for an entire elementary school in Mililani on Oahu where she creates and presents fabulous,
amazing shows with the whole school twice a year. My brother is an aeronautical engineer. He was on
the design team for the starting engine of the Boeing 747. Today he has his own engineering consulting
business with clients across the South Pacific. Our children, seven of them, are all, excuse me, are all
boys. My three nephews graduated from Punahou and my four sons graduated from Baldwin. My one
son lives on the Big Island. They were six miles from the epicenter. During the earthquake they called
to say they were very happy to be alive and together.
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Now the reason I'm telling you this very personal story is because this is a very common and familiar
story. It's not unusual. The sakadas are very, very successful and accomplished group of people. The
ones from San Nicolas are especially a blessing to Maui because we are many of us here. And I'd like
you to consider that today as you look at our request for an approval for us to be a sister-city. Think of
all the 300 or more San Nicolanians [sic] who live on Maui and their contributions. Very, very laudable
and I hope you can be proud of us as we are very proud to be Maui citizens and Americans. Thank you
so much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Ayson.
MS. AYSON: Mabuhay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Thank you. Chair will
offer the members of the public one last opportunity to testify. Please come up to the podium if you
have anything to say regarding our agenda items. At this point seeing nobody approaching the front, the
Chair, if there are no objections, will close public testimony for our agenda items.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Seeing no objections, public testimony is closed for today .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR MOLINA: Our first item of discussion, Members, will be Committee of the Whole Item 51.
COW-51

SISTER-CITY RELATIONSHIP WITH THE MUNICIPALITY OF SAN NICOLAS,
PROVINCE OF ILOCOS NORTE, REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES (C.C. No. 06-148)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 06-148, from the Economic
Development Coordinator, transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "ESTABLISHING A SISTERCITY RELATIONSHIP WITH THE MUNICIPALITY OF SAN NICOLAS, PROVINCE OF ILOCOS
NORTE, REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES". The purpose of the proposed resolution it to establish a
sister-city relationship with the Municipality of San Nicolas, a Province of Ilocos Norte, Republic of the
Philippines. And from the Economic Development Department we have the Director, Lynn
Araki-Regan, and also in our presence we have the Corporation Counsel, Jacob [sic] Souki; and I would
like to ask Director Regan to please introduce the person next to her. I apologize I did not get your
name.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Good morning, Chair and Members. With me is our Small Business Advocate, Anna
Ribucan, who coordinates the sister-cities program for Maui County. Thank you for allowing us to be
here today. Ever since the Mayor's Office of Economic Development sponsored a successful
international award-winning Maui County Sister-Cities Festival last June, there have been much interest
in Maui County's sister-cities program nationally as well as internationally. The resolution before you is
a good example and came about as a result of Mayor Arakawa's receipt of a resolution dated
December 19, 2005, which extended an invitation to the County of Maui to establish a sister-city
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municipality relationship with the Municipality of San Nicolas, Province of Hocos Norte, Philippines.
Perhaps, Chair Molina, it would be possibly appropriate to give a short background of the sister-cities
program or?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, if you could be brief, please. Thank you.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Okay. Currently, there are 21 sister-cities, 8 of which are in the Philippines. In
reviewing past resolutions it's apparent that many sister-city relationships were created as a result of the
community's cultural ties and history with that specific city or municipality. Other factors that have
been considered include whether an organization here on Maui County is interested in and committed to
sponsoring the sister-city relationship, the opportunities for educational, economic development
programs between the cities, the opportunities for cultural, professional, technical, governmental, youth,
and trade commerce exchanges between the cities, as well as similarities in terms of the economy and
geography. More information on the sister-cities programs in general, including Maui County's
internationally award-winning program, can be found in a Sister-Cities International 50th Anniversary
Booklet, which we'd like to present to you at this time. . . . (Booklets are passed out to Council
Members) . ..
Before you is a resolution for your consideration which was prepared and transmitted to Council back in
March, as I said in response to the resolution passed in San Nicolas on December 19, 2005. Here are
some factors you may want to consider when evaluating the resolution. Maui Filipino Community
Council led by Mr. Fred Dagdag has offered to be the official sponsor of the sister-city relationship if
the Council approves the establishment of this resolution. Another consideration is that a large number
of workers for sugar and plantation... and pineapple plantations throughout Maui County emigrated
from the Municipality of San Nicolas. Today in talking with Ms. Ayson - Dr. Ayson - there are over
300 people from San Nicolas presently here in Maui County. Because ofMaui County's strong, active
Filipino community, there have been many Mauians who have visited and continue to do cultural
exchanges with San Nicolas, especially this year being the centennial since the first sakadas emigrated to
Hawaii. Another consideration is that there is obvious interest in the Filipino community for the
establishment of this sister-city relationship. This is. . .the group here before you is just a small
percentage of the amount of people who express support for this resolution. Another consideration is
that in terms of economy, agriculture, and tourism are economically important to both San Nicolas and
Maui County.
In the interest of time I think maybe--

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: --I'll end my remarks.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Director. Committee Members, any questions for Director
Araki-Regan on this matter? And also Chair would like to make a correction on Corporation Counsel. I
mistakenly called you Jacob, it's Jesse . . . Jesse Souki. Sorry about that. Any questions for the
Economic Development Department or Corporation Counsel with regards to this proposed sister-city
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relationship? If none, the Chair will then make a recommendation. The Chair will ask for a motion to
support the proposed resolution.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Pontanilla. Member Kane,
as the maker of the motion, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I yield.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. The floor has been yielded. Any Member would like to make a comment as it
relates to the motion on the floor to support a proposed sister-city relationship with the ... San Nicolas,
which is a province of Ilocos Norte in the Philippines.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I'll be supporting this resolution in celebration of,
not only in celebration of 100 years here in Hawaii, you know, building sister-city relationships is very
important for our County as well as San Nicolas. You know, looking at the resolution that has been
prepared by Maui County, as well as the resolution that was passed back in December 2005, I think both
sister-cities will accomplish a great deal, not only economically, but educationally also. I am a son of a
sakada. My father came from the Ilocos Region and I know that he would be proud to see his son
supporting a resolution like we have this morning. So, Chair, I'll be supporting this resolution.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Member Pontanilla, for those kind words. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And I, too, echo the same sentiments as
Member Pontanilla. I, too, am a son of a sakada. My dad is from Laoag City and we grew up learning
the cultural ties between both the new land and the mother land. And as we get ready to wind down on
the centennial celebration of the sakada I think it's important for us to understand and fully realize the
impact that this State's second largest ethnic group has played in the economic diversity and strength of
the Hawaiian community as well as the ... as well as Hawaii's economic diversification. The Filipinos
played a major role in that and today I am proud to be able to support this resolution because that bond
does exist between the mother land and this new land we call Hawaii. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Any other comments as it relates to the motion on the floor?
Chair would just like to offer his comments and needless to say the Chair will be supporting this
resolution. I'd like to thank Mayor Valdez and the delegation from the San Nicolas Province for joining
us this morning. So with that being said, the Chair will call for the vote. All those in favor signify by
saymg aye.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Pontanilla,
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Anderson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPT RESOLUTION AND FILE COMMUNICATION.

CHAIR MOLINA: Chair will mark it eight ayes with one excusal, Member Anderson. Thank you.
(applause from the gallery). . . Members, the Chair would like to call for a brief recess. .., (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

9:29 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:35 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel) . .. The Committee of the Whole meeting for October 31,2006 is now back in
session. We're on our second agenda item for today.
COW-1(40)

SETTLEMENT AUTHORIZATION OF CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS (CLAIM OF JEFFREY
THIEL AND AMERIPRISE AUTO AND HOME INSURANCE, CLAIM NO. 2005-113) (C.c. No. 05-24)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in receipt of correspondence dated September 5, 2006, from the
Department of the Corporation Counsel, requesting consideration of a proposed resolution entitled
"AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIM NO. 2005-113 BY JEFFREY THIEL AND
AMERIPRISE AUTO AND HOME INSURANCE", and transmitting a copy of the claim. The claim
alleges damages related to an automobile collision with a County vehicle. The purpose of the proposed
resolution is to authorize settlement of the case for $8,805.30. From the Corporation Counsel's office to
give us an overview of this matter, we have Ms. Moana Lutey, and also we have from the Department of
Public Works and Environmental Management, the Director, Mr. Milton Arakawa. Corporation
Counsel, if you will.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. Good morning. On November 18, 2005, a County-owned street sweeper was
traveling on Waiinu Drive, I'm sorry, Street, when he executed a u-turn at the intersection of Waiale
Drive, thereby rear-ending Mr. Thiel's vehicle which was waiting to make a left turn onto Waiale Drive.
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I have provided you with the police report. There is a diagram in that if you want to see how that looks.
And so today I am requesting settlement authority in the amount of $8,805.30. The breakdown for this
is $8,324.03 to Ameriprise Auto and Home Insurance. That includes the $1,000 deductible paid by
Mr. Thiel and $481.27 to Mr. Thiel. I believe that this is a matter we can handle in open session.
However, I will just state for the record that if you have questions about disciplinary matters as it relates
to this specific employee, those will need to be taken up in executive session because those types of
matters are protected by the collective bargaining agreement.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Corporation Counsel. Committee Members, questions in open session
regarding this matter? Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: To avoid going into executive session, the question is general.
MS. LUTEY: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Were there disciplinary actions taken against this employee?
CHAIR MOLINA: Director Arakawa, would you like to respond to that question?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. If I am reviewing this report correctly, this incident
occurred about midnight. Is that a good approximation of time, Mr. Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: Council Member, it happened at 12:49 a.m.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I noticed that was the time, yeah, that it was reported. This is normal
operations for the program that your department conducts?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes. That's correct.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm also assuming that the vehicle that was damaged was at night so the
lights were on, he was at a full stop at the intersection. Was this a lighted intersection that this incident
occurred at?
MS. LUTEY: Councilmember Hokama, based on the police report I'm not able to tell you whether it is or not.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Are there extenuating circumstances that the Committee needs to know
why? It's kind of interesting, you know. This guy is driving. He's in our ... he's in the intersection.
We have a vehicle that has lights on.
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MS. LUTEY: Councilmember Hokama, I provided you with all the information that I have in terms of the
mechanics of this particular collision. I don't have anything outside of that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Were there any other vehicles in the ... at the stop ... at the intersections? Or
was this just a one vehicle and our County equipment?
MS. LUTEY: Based on the police report, it's just this two-car collision and there are no other statements from
any other witnesses.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Members, any other questions for Corporation
Counselor the Public Works Department? Okay. Seeing none. Any request for executive session?
Okay. Seeing no request for executive session. Therefore, the Chair will make a recommendation. The
Chair will entertain a motion to support the proposed resolution.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Pontanilla. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I am happy to support you. I will vote with reservations. The
reservations is I am getting very tired about all of this vehicular accidents. We continue to have
department-wide, not just with Public Works, in our County and it's just distressing for me that we
either banging people in the back or we're reversing and banging people. I don't know what it is,
Chairman, but it's .. .it's just disturbing to me the frequency and amounts that these situations occur.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your comments, Member Hokama. Any other comments or questions
as it relates to the motion on the floor? Seeing none. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? ... (change tape, start IE) . ..
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Pontanilla, and
Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson and Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPT RESOLUTION.

CHAIR MOLINA: Chair will mark it 7-0 with two excusals, Members Anderson and Members Carroll. Thank
you, Members. Let us move on to our next Committee item.
COW-1(43)

SETTLEMENT AUTHORIZATION OF CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS (JOSEPH CRISAFULLI
V. COUNTY OF MAUl, CIVIL NO. 05-1-0443(1)) (C.c. No. 05-24)

CHAIR MOLINA: It's Committee of the Whole Item 1(43). The Committee is in receipt ofa correspondence
dated October 23, 2006, from the Department of the Corporation Counsel, requesting consideration of a
proposed resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF JOSEPH CRISAFULLI VS.
COUNTY OF MAUl, ET AL., CIVIL NO. 05-1-0443(1)", and transmitting a copy of the complaint.
The complaint alleges general and special damages arising from injuries caused by a County police
officer or officers. The purpose of the proposed resolution is to authorize settlement of the case. And
we have from the Corporation Counsel office joining us is Laureen Martin and from the Police
Department, Assistant Chief, Wayne Ribao.
Good morning. Who would like to give the overview first? Would that be you, Ms. Lutey?
MS. LUTEY: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
MS. LUTEY: I have attached the copy of the complaint in this matter and I believe that from the way it reads
you'll see that this is a matter I will need to take up in executive session because it is in active litigation.
The basic allegations by the plaintiff are that on December 19, 2004, he was arrested by a police officer
at Casanova's in Makawao. That he was transported by that police officer to a cane field, removed from
the vehicle, and struck. Because this case is in active litigation as I've said, I believe that the majority of
this will need to be discussed in executive session. I am requesting settlement authority in this case in
an amount to be discussed solely in executive session.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Corporation Counsel. Committee Members, questions in open session
as it relates to this matter? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. Can you tell us if the Police Commission what. . .if
this was brought before the Police Commission and the Commission made any comments, decisions, or
recommendations regarding this specific item for us this morning?
MS. LUTEY: The Police Commission would have been presented with this matter if the officer had requested
legal representation. In this case that was done and his request was denied.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can you tell us in open session why it was denied?
MS. LUTEY: I don't know the specifics of why it was denied. I can tell you that this officer has been charged
criminally for events that resulted from this particular matter. That is a matter of public record.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Committee Members, any other questions in open
session for Corporation Counselor the Police Department? Seeing none. The Chair at this point will
entertain being ... based on recommendation from Corporation Counsel, the Chair will entertain a
motion to go into executive session pursuant to Section 92-5(a)(4) of the Hawaii Revised Statutes to
consult with legal counsel on questions and issues pertaining to the powers, duties, privileges,
immunities, and liabilities of the County, the Council, and the Committee.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Pontanilla. Any
discussion? Seeing none. All those in favor of the motion to go into executive session signify by saying
aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All opposed?
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Pontanilla,
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Anderson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

EXECUTIVE SESSION.

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. The Chair will mark it 8-0 with one excusal, Member Anderson. We will now
go into executive session for Committee of the Whole Item 1(43). We shall prepare the chambers for
that. Meeting in recess. .., (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

9:45 a.m.

(THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING ENTERED INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION AT
9:48 A.M AND ENDED AT 10:21 A.M)
RECONVENE:

10:43 p.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel) . .. The Committee of the Whole meeting of October 31,2006 is now back in
session. Thank you, Members, for that recess.
COW-1(43)

SETTLEMENT AUTHORIZATION OF CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS (JOSEPH CRISAFULLI
V. COUNTY OF MAUl, CIVIL NO. 05-1-0443(1)) (C.c. No. 05-24)

CHAIR MOLINA: When we last left off, we were discussing Committee of the Whole Item 1(43) and based on
recommendations made in executive session, the Chair would like to entertain a motion to support a
proposed resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF JOSEPH CRISAFULLI VS.
COUNTY OF MAUl".
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Tavares. Any discussion? Seeing
none. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
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CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Johnson, Mateo,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Pontanilla,

and

Councilmembers Anderson and Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPT RESOLUTION.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Members. The Chair marks it 7-0; two excusals, Members Anderson
and Hokama.
COW-1(36)

SETTLEMENT AUTHORIZATION OF CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS (AUTHORIZING
SETTLEMENT OF ALL CASES RELATING TO THE REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1377 FRONT
STREET, LAHAINA, MAUl, HAWAII, AND AUTHORIZING ACQUISITION OF SAID REAL
PROPERTY) (CC. No. 05-24)

CHAIR MOLINA: Moving on to our next item which is Committee of the Whole Item 1(36), settlement
authorization of claims and lawsuits. This matter deals with authorizing settlement of all cases relating
to the real property located at 1377 Front Street, Lahaina, Maui, Hawaii, and authorizing acquisition of
said real property. I have been informed by Corporation Counsel that there has been no status change in
the matter since we last met on this item. So therefore, based on what has been told to the Chair, I
would recommend a deferral of this item. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused: MA)
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Seeing no objections, Committee of the Whole Item 1(36) is deferred.
COW-60

AUTHORIZING PROCEEDINGS IN EMINENT DOMAIN FOR THE ACQUISITION
OF REAL PROPERTY AT UKUMEHAME (CC. No. 06-263)

CHAIR MOLINA: Moving on to Committee of the Whole Item 60, authorizing proceedings in eminent domain
for the acquisition of real property at Ukumehame. The Committee is in receipt of County
Communication No. 06-263, from the Planning Director, transmitting a proposed resolution entitled
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"AUTHORIZING PROCEEDINGS IN EMINENT DOMAIN FOR THE ACQUISITION OF REAL
PROPERTY SITUATED AT UKUMEHAME, MAUl, HAW All FOR UTILITIES, PARK, AND
ACCESS PURPOSES TO COUNTY PROPERTY". The intent of the proposed resolution is to
authorize proceedings in eminent domain for the acquisition of real property situated at Ukumehame for
$S07,8S0. The real property would be used to enhance access to County property, including the
construction of acceleration and deceleration lanes, and for utility and park purposes. To give us an
overview of this matter, we have the Deputy Planning Director, Mr. Don Couch; and also from
Corporation Counsel, we have Jesse Souki and Cindy Young; and from the Planning Department we
have Mr. Allan DeLima in our chambers as well. So I'll yield the floor to Mr. Couch.
MR. COUCH: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Members. The County ofMaui acquired approximately 100

acres of the Ukumehame property in 2006. The approximate 100 acres was acquired in two segments;
an 8S-acre parcel which we have clear title to and title insurance and a IS-acre portion which involves a
number of exclusions where the gap ... where there are gaps in the title. The IS-acre portion was deeded
to the County without any cost to the County. The purpose of this proceeding today is to provide
permanent access to create the necessary access and electrical utility improvement and all to serve the
County property as well as the subdivision mauka of the County property. The property has limited
unimproved access. The proceedings will provide safe, functional, and permanent access.
The access areas involve portions of Exclusion Numbers 1, 8, and 9. I believe you have a map of that
and we have a big one right here that Mr. DeLima is gonna put up in front. Each of the exclusions have
broken title. Small portions of these exclusions are needed for an acceleration/deceleration lane
provided ... required by the State Department of Transportation. The Exclusion 9 is for easements for
removal and replacement of existing telephone poles by MECO. The acquisition cost of portions of the
Exclusions 1, 8, and 9 for the access and utility purposes will be paid by the owner of the mauka
subdivision, including surveying, title search, appraisal, and engineering costs. The cost of
improvements for. .. of the access areas, including payments to the State of Hawaii for certain remnant
parcels from the State, as well as an enhancement value to be paid for the State for the entire
Ukumehame property, will be paid by the private party, as well as SO percent of the attorney's fees to
initiate and complete the eminent domain proceedings.
Appraisals for the entire Exclusions Number 1, 8, and 9 have been provided which include a possible
acquisition cost of about. .. of exactly $S07,8S0. The developers of the subdivision are willing to pay a
portion of the County's cost in acquiring its portions of Exclusions Numbers 1, 8, and 9. So we're
asking for basically eminent domain to get clear title so we can grant the easements.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Couch. Committee Members, questions, but before we do that just
for clarification purposes, Corporation Counsel, we're dealing with the resolution that is attached to the
October 2S, 2006 memo. Am I correct?
MR. SOUKI: That is correct.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Committee Members, you have ... the floor is open. Member Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Mr. Couch, when the State Department of Transportation, I guess
during the reading that I have in the binder, indicated that they would be willing to pay a portion of the
monies for the I guess eminent domain, where is that money actually going?
MR. COUCH: In the ... we have to provide a bond for the eminent domain. Right now we have broken title to
the ... to the property. If we say we want to do eminent domain and we put it out for eminent domain,
there are ... there's an opportunity for somebody to say, hey, I have .. .I have title to this property and
then that's where the court's would use part of this bond to pay for their share if they say they own it and
of course can prove that they own portions of the property of whichever property that we're
condemning.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and if we're looking at just roughly over $500,000, what portion of
that would the developer be willing to pay as well as the State DOT?
MR. COUCH: As far as I know I don't have any figures on the State DOT. The developer is willing to pay 50
percent of all of the exclusions ... all of the property we're condemning even though they only need a
portion of the property for easements up to about 50 percent, half the cost of acquisition and half of that
basically, $507,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. With regard to our need to access the area of the property that we
had purchased, I have not in my Committee seen any plans or anything for expansion of that park area
moving forward. So is there a big, huge urgency to move forward with this issue at this time?
MR. COUCH:
As far as the County's concerned, we need to get the access areas. . .the
acceleration/deceleration lanes in. It's required by the State in the agreement. They have one year from
the, the beginning of their agreement. I don't remember what date that was, but they have about a year
to get those acceleration and deceleration lanes in. And as far as we're concerned, the longer it goes, the
less that the developer's willing to pay at the top for the portions that they don't need. Right now
they're paying up to 50 percent of the acquisition cost of the portions that they don't have any need forjust the easement.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
developer, the State DOT?

Okay.

Who

IS

required to complete this within one year?

Is it the

MR. COUCH: I believe it's the developer is creating the access ... acceleration and deceleration lanes to access
our property and theirs.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And that's required per-MR. COUCH: The State Department of ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --which agreement?
MR. COUCH: State Department of Transportation and construction permit.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Mr. Chair, because the State Department of Transportation is not
here, I have some questions. I'll, you know, allow others to speak but I do have concerns about the
configuration of this, some drainage issues, and also the wisdom of putting these accesses right on a
critical corridor which are basically driveways and specifically putting them on probably one of the most
dangerous curves in all of West Maui on that highway.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson, and for the record we did invite the State Department of
DOT, but as you will note from a letter sent to us by Mr. Morioka, the Deputy Director, they need two
weeks so apparently we're just a couple of days short and for whatever reasons they could not send a
Maui representative. I don't know if Staff would care to elaborate further on that?
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chair, we had contacted the Department of Transportation in Honolulu based upon a
contact number and name of a person when I had had a meeting with yourself and the developer. After
requesting ... they had suggested ... they had told us to make the request directly to the Maui District
Office for the person to attend as well as for a written response, which we did. I did subsequently get a
call from the Maui District Office saying that the protocol that they are now following is to contact the
Director in Honolulu. I requested that that letter be transmitted to the Director and they declined to do
so. So we then had to issue another letter to the Director in Honolulu, which we did, and the result is the
letter that you see before you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Staff. I find that this type of bureaucracy unbelievable when it comes to
matters like this, but I will leave my personal issues aside on this. Anyway, the floor is now open for
other Members to ask questions so either the Planning Director or the Corporation Counsel as it relates
to this particular item. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Couch, if you can please, give us an idea of the discussions, if
any, between us and the people that were proceeding with this eminent domain for acquisition of the
property. What discussions were held? Where are we with that? Was it a good discussion, healthy
discussion, -MR. COUCH: Which, which people ...
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --acrimonious? I mean help us understand where we're at with this.
MR. COUCH: Which, which people are you referring to, sir?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: The people that we're doing the eminent domain for, for the property.
MR. COUCH: For the owners of the subdivision above-VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. COUCH: --our property?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
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MR. COUCH: It's a very cooperative discussion.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So this is a friendly condemnation?
MR. COUCH: We are not condemning. We basically have broken title to this land so technically it's ours but
we don't have clear title. So we would have to condemn it in order to get clear title. So we're basically
condemning our own land just to get clear title. If nobody comes up and says, eh, wait I've got a piece
of this, you know, I have 10 percent of this property and can prove it, then we don't pay anybody any
money.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So this is the quiet title? County ... on that whereas on Page 2, I believe.
MR. COUCH: Yes. Yes, sir.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Chair, I yield.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. What is ... what is your understanding of how much
we paid for this broken title during the acquisition of the 100,000, excuse me, the 100 acres?
MR. COUCH: It was ... the 15 acres was gifted to us.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Was gifted to us?
MR. COUCH: Yes. So we didn't pay anything for it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And now the giftor [sic] is willing to pay 50 percent of the eminent domain
cost?
MR. COUCH: Of all the ... of all the exclusions that were involved in here, Exclusions Number 1, 8, and 9.
They're colored ... highlighted on there I think in purple.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It is our understanding that the County upon moving forward with this
eminent domain process would need to deposit with a Circuit Court of the Second Circuit approximately
$508,000?
MR. COUCH: That is my understanding but I'm not quite sure. The lawyers would have to answer that.

(Note: A short pause.)
MR. SOUKI: We'll be depositing the 500 ... and approximately $508,000 into the court but if there aren't any
claimants, we get the money back. If there are claimants, a portion of it would go to those claimants if
they could prove that they have title through the eminent domain process, and in that case, depending on
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when, when we get the order of possession, we'd be reimbursed by the WMI.
Investors.

That's West Maui

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Could you tell us this morning why it is your department
and not the Director of Finance that is doing the deposit to the court since he's our Chief Financial
Officer and he has been given a lot of authority through the Charter?
MS. YOUNG: Our office would be filing the complaint and we would also be, as Deputy Corporation Counsel
Souki indicated, we would be filing the motion for order of possession so that's why our office would be
depositing with the court the approximately $508,000.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. No, I just. . .I just needed to ask that because, of course, the Finance
Director is an officer of the County, a high-ranking officer of the County. So can you tell us this
morning how your department will be obtaining this 508,000 ... approximately $508,000?
MS. YOUNG: Mr. Chair, we've, we've discussed with the Department of Planning and Department of
Planning has, has had discussions with the Department of Finance and there is 508,000, actually there's
more, but there's adequate amount in the Open Space Fund in order to .. .in order to fund this ... this
condemnation ... the money that would be deposited.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I would say in general the Council would agree with that. So is your
department going to process a request to Council for an appropriation from that fund for this purpose?
You cannot just take money from the fund without authorization.
MS. YOUNG: We would defer to Finance on, on the logistics of that. .. ofhow that money would be obtained.
But my understanding is that there is enough funds in that account.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you're just unsure how the authorization would move forward. You
folks have not worked out the details of how to get the authorization so that you can receive a County
check for $507,850 for deposit?
MR. SOUKI: If I may, Chair? The Planning Department has been taking the lead role in this Ukumehame
Project so I would defer to Planning. Have you looked into how we would get funding from the Open
Space Fund at this point?
MR. COUCH: At this point we are. . .if we can get this proceedings to start, then we can go in for the
authorization. Ifwe don't get this proceeding to start, it would be a mute point.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So can we assume Mr. Ginoza, as our Budget Director, is, is aware and is
processing some type of vehicle to present for consideration or everything is still pending awaiting
outcome of this request?
MR. COUCH: Yes. Mr. Ginoza, has been made aware and is ... had been assured full cooperation.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. And before the Chair recognizes Member Johnson, Chair
would like to just inform the body we do have Mr. Young, the Director of the Finance Department, here
to respond to any questions related to the money issue and we have Mr. Craig Yamasaki from Maui
Electric who is the Land Administrator, as well, available here. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and perhaps Corporation Counsel can answer this question. When the
Open Space Fund was established with regard to the use of this money for preservation of open space,
culturally significant lands, and historic sites, how would that type of use basically work with utility and
easements for ingress/egress?
MR. COUCH: Councilmember Johnson, the money for the easements is going to be paid for fully by the
developer. The money for the acquisition of the rest of the property, instead of condemning only the
pieces we needed for easement, we decided since ultimately we are going to need clear title to the full
exclusions we figured we'd do it right now at the same time as opposed to just the portion that they need
for the easement. But the money for the easements are all being provided by the developer.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And what is the total of that?
MR. COUCH: I'm not sure I have the exact amount. It's a small piece because there are just small piece ...
really tiny pieces of the exclusions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And the sections that are outlined in purple which are the lands that we
would be acquiring?
MR. COUCH: Again, we already have the lands but we'd be acquiring clear title. We have broken title now.
Yes,-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so ...
MR. COUCH: --the amounts in purple are the Exclusions 1, 8, and 9.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But I also thought when I read in the documentation that in order for us to
access the park space that we purchased, which did have clear title, that that was part of the justification
for coming forward with this measure?
MR. COUCH: Correct. In order for us to get into ... even though it's a passive park, we still need a good
access as opposed to just a gate off the side of a major State highway. So the State Department of
Transportation required acceleration and deceleration lanes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But that's to serve the subdivision.
MR. COUCH: And our access to our portions as well. Ifwe need to get in ... the Parks Department has to get
in there and for instance remove garbage or whatever, it's now part of the Parks Department and they
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have to ... even though it's a passive park, there's still maintenance on a passive park, and the only way
to get in there right now is off the main highway.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And with regard to the corridor or where the relocation of Honoapiilani
Highway would go, where is that slated right at this time?
MR. COUCH: Well, right now the Environmental. . .Environmental Impact Statement is being done for the
realignment ofHonoapiilani Highway. So as part of the requirements of the EIS the State is not allowed
to have a preferred destination until the end of the EIS. So we don't know. We would prefer it to be
inside our lands so that we don't have to go through another or the State doesn't have to go through
another long involved process with a bunch of landowners to acquire land. We will have the land ready
for them.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, but we don't know where the corridor is gonna be.
MR. COUCH: We, we cannot yet, no. We would prefer it be inside ours and that, that will help in the EIS
assessment saying that help choose something in our corridor if it's one landowner as opposed to
multiple landowners further on out.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. With regard to the area where it. .. because it basically is a wetland
area along that whole corridor, it was mentioned to me by somebody that has an engineering background
that even when a site is picked for the relocation of Honoapiilani Highway, that the elevation would
more than likely have to be raised because of the flooding issue. What will that do to either the property
that we have acquired or what will it do to any people who build in this subdivision with regard to
flooding?
MR. COUCH: I believe all that will be taken care of in the Environmental Impact Statement because like I said
we don't have ... we have kind of. .. we hope that the highway's gonna go through our property, at the
top end of the property, and if that's the case, that they would build all the required drainage. The
elevation is .. .I mean it's pretty far in so they would probably, you know, I would assume something
similar to .. .I'm not an engineer so I'm just making an assumption here, something similar to Mokulele
Highway at the Kihei side there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Would there be any liability of which you are aware on the part of
the County should the homes begin to come up in the subdivision and all of a sudden the corridor is in
an area where it changes the grade and there's flooding issues with regard to homes built in this
subdivision? In other words, if the highway is relocated to an area where it creates either a barrier or the
elevation is raised to a point where there are drainage issues, if people have already built their homes in
this subdivision, what would be the liability on the part of the County should we have any drainage, you
know, either coming off our property or what would the liability of the State Department of
Transportation be with regard to those flooding issues on people's homes?
MR. COUCH: Councilwoman Johnson, I would have to defer to the legal staff because I'm not.
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MR. SOUKI: I would hesitate to speculate about what could potentially be liability for. .. a corridor hasn't even
been decided upon yet because we are not that stage of the process with the highway. I can say that the
highway would be State property. I wouldn't be able to speculate on, on what type of liability could
arise for a project that doesn't exist yet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and that Mr. Chair, is my problem because if the subdivision goes in,
which is the whole purpose in driving this forward, and then the corridor is decided upon later. I mean,
frankly, because we don't know yet where it's gonna run, if it's gonna run on County property, I have
some concerns. And I also have concerns about this being a critical access corridor. That curve there's two areas where there will be ingress and egress coming directly on to a critical access highway.
We have a stoplight already at Launiupoko and there have already been fatalities. The area where one
of these access points is, is probably one of the most dangerous curves and it's been referred to as
Deadman's Curve. So I really have some concerns about us getting into a situation unless we have the
Department of Transportation here or somebody to assure us that we are not creating a further liability
on the part of the County. So I as one representative, I'm very .. .I'm really not comfortable moving
forward until we know where this corridor is going to be and what our legal liability would be because
of some of the drainage issues and also the safety for West Maui's people .... (change tape, start 2A) . ..
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Members, any other comments? Chair has one question.
It's maybe for Mr. Couch. What type of timetable are we dealing with? I know it's been mentioned that
the developer wants to pay a good portion of the fees that are being talked about. If, you know, I guess
basically, what are the pros and cons if we make a decision today or defer and discuss it a month from
now. I mean can you share some of your thoughts with us on that?
MR. COUCH: Well, we were able to negotiate I believe the 14th of March, if we get this through Council
basically by the 14th of March, that they'll pay up to 50 percent and then there's a sliding scale from
there. Obviously, the 14th of March was picked because we didn't want to get you guys involved during
Budget. So that was one of the solutions.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, so in short we have some time to play with it at this point?
MR. COUCH: A little bit, yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, 'cause I know we didn't have the DOT here. I think they .. .I would have hoped for
their participation, but as we heard earlier they have a new set of standards or protocol as to when they
can be notified so they can be here. But. .. okay. Members, any other questions for Mr. Couch or for
the Corporation Counsel's office? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I would ask for your consideration in forwarding a request to
Corporation Counsel that we would like in writing their understanding of how the Open Space
Preservation Fund can be used under this scenario for acceleration, deceleration lanes, and utility
purposes of the land.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Staff, would you like that repeated? Okay. We'll make note of that Member
Hokama. Mr. Souki.
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MR. SOUKI: Just, just to clarify, the egress and ingress portions of the exclusion that we are condemning and
that utility easement are going to be paid in full by the subdivision applicant. The County will be using
the Open Space Fund for the rest of that portion. If you look at the map, it's hard to see but it's just a...
the portions that they're going to pay for are the tiny slivers that are the acceleration and deceleration
lanes and then there's a whole rest of the property that goes up, if that's north on the map, and that's,
that's the part that we're going to use the Open Space Fund for. And then again, we would only need to
payout if someone makes a valid claim that they can prove in court that they have title through the
eminent domain process.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. I understand, Mr. Souki. I know what you're saying, but if I
understood correctly earlier, you still would be more than likely forwarding to the body, specific to our
Budget and Finance Committee, a request to use $507,850 from the Open Space Fund for these purposes
and that is what the Council would be authorizing.

(NOTE: A short pause.)
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, again, I just think for, for future if this is how an
Administration is going to try and take money from one specific type of pot, that Corp. Counsel needs to
put it on black and white so that if a further future scenario does come up similar, the then sitting
Corporation Counsel cannot tell us otherwise that no, I don't agree, and we won't. .. you can't use the
fund for that purpose. So let's get it on the record in black and white that that is this Corporation
Counsel's formal opinion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, any other comments? And ... sorry, Member
Johnson. By the way, Member Johnson, if you'll indulge the Chair for a moment?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Sure.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Young, just for the public's information, if I could ask Mr. Young, the Finance
Director, to share his thoughts on this? Thank you for making yourself available, Mr. Young. It's much
appreciated by the Chair. Just for the public's information, I don't know if you have it with you now,
how much do we currently have in the Open Space Fund?
MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Mr. Chair and Members. Preliminary review of the Open Space Fund reveals
that there was sufficient funds to cover this transaction. As of last week when I just took a quick look
and account of the fund, there was an excess of 1.8 million unexpended in the fund and that didn't
include contributions from this fiscal year for real property tax collections.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Young.
Director at this point? Member Johnson.

Committee Members, any questions for the Finance

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Kalbert, because this is being deposited or would be deposited in a
potential fund if someone were to come forward and claim title to the land, wouldn't it be more
appropriate, and this is just my opinion, to take it from claims and settlements? Because the money
would be replaced ostensibly if the person or persons did not after whatever period of time come
forward and claim title. So wouldn't that be a more appropriate place from which to get the money?
MR. YOUNG: Member Johnson, arguably there could be an argument made that, that for accounting purposes
we could take it from a claims and settlement account. In just quickly looking over this transaction, the
funds that are being requested is to a quiet title. And in my opinion quiet title on an acquisition that was
made from, you know, an acquisition for Open Space at Ukumehame, so my understanding is that these
funds are not for the actual purpose ... actual purchase ... actual, excuse me, actual purchase, but to .. to
basically conclude a previous transaction - to clear a clouded title on an asset that we had purchased
through a previous transaction. So on that line of reasoning I can see why the desire to access the Open
Space Fund. However, in, in my mind, it's one of those where based on the reasonable judgment or the
line of reasoning, either one could be appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and also if you could as part of a response, give us what the total
amount is that exist in our claims and settlements, and then if the money were to be taken from that,
what the remainder would be?
MR. YOUNG: Well, at this time I couldn't. . .I can't give you what amount is available in claims and
settlement. However, I believe that a $500,000 hit on claims and settlement would be more significant
to that fund than to the Open Space Fund only because there have been very few accesses to the Open
Space Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Committee Members, any other questions for Corporation
Counsel, Finance Department, or the Planning Director before the Chair offers a recommendation?
Okay. Seeing none. The Chair at this point, if there are no objections, is going to recommend a
deferral. We don't have the Department of Transportation here that I think it was important for them to
be here to answer some of the questions brought up and as Member Hokama requested a formal request
for the usage of whatever particular fund the $507,000 is to come from and I would presume that would
be from the Open Space Fund. The Chair, and senses the Committee as well, would feel more
comfortable to get a written request from the Administration. So we've been told that we do have a little
time to work with this so the Chair will try to bring this back sometime in the near future, but we have
until March 14th for a final decision to be made as it relates to the ongoing negotiation between the
Administration and the landowners. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Could we also request if there is any documentation in writing of what
the developer would be willing to actually put in and what that agreement would be? If they have that in
writing, that might be helpful. If they don't have it in writing, you know, because basically if the
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monies were to be deposited, then we wouldn't actually, in my understanding, be paying the $508,000
upfront if the developer agreed to pay a portion of that. And also, if monies were deposited by both the
developer and the County, if they were to be let's say a refund at some point in time, who would get the
respective refund - if that would be coming back to us and the developer.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So noted. Staff, can you make note of that from Member Johnson. Thank you.
Okay, Members, any other request before the Chair defers this item? Seeing none.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused: MA)
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR MOLINA: With no objections, Committee of the Whole Item 60 is deferred. Members, we've had a
long, interesting discussion on this item. Would you care for a short break or are you ... do you have the
energy to bulldoze through our next item?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Let's go, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright. I love your enthusiasm, Members.
COW-61

KIHEI HIGH SCHOOL OPTION AGREEMENT (e.c. No. 06-262)

CHAIR MOLINA: Alrighty. We're dealing with Committee of the Whole Item 61. The Committee is in
receipt of County Communication No. 06-262, from the Mayor, transmitting a copy of the Option
Agreement for a Kihei High School. The purpose of the Option Agreement is to allow Hawaii School
Development LLC (Dowling) to purchase real property from the County for $1 based upon Dowling's
commitment to construct a Kihei High School and convey the school and property to the State
Department of Education on a "design build lease" or "design build sale" basis. The subject property is
comprised of approximately 72 acres at TMK (2) 2-2-02:001.
And to give us an overview of this matter we have again, the Deputy Planning Director, Mr. Don Couch,
and joining us from the Corporation Counsel is Mr. Ed Kushi. Mr. Couch, you have the floor.
MR. COUCH: Thank you, Chair. As, as you are no doubt aware, Council, Kihei needs a high school and the
Mayor is ... and the Administration is willing to work with whomever would ... can get us the high
school as quickly as possible. What we're doing right now is we're work. .. the Kihei Community
Association approached Everett Dowling and asked him to ... whether or not he'd be interested in doing
a similar situation with Kamalii School where he would build the school and then turn it over to the
Department of Education. Mr. Dowling said he'd be interested in doing that and all of a sudden,
according to the papers, he was doing that so he proceeded forward and talked with the Administration.
And in an effort to keep the Council informed at the beginning of the process as opposed to when you
actually need to act, we're here before you with an Option Agreement that the Administration would
like to sign with Mr. Dowling basically turning over 72 acres of land that we own in Kihei to him in
order for him to build a school and then ... a high school and then turn that over to the Department of
Education.
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We would want to stress that we do not and will not turn over the land to him ... sell him the land, unless
he has an agreement with the Department of Education and the deed restricts the land to a high school in
that area. Basically, that's what the Option Agreement says. You have it before you. We're asking for
your input on that Option Agreement, and basically, a matter of whether you ... the Council is amenable
to the ... a situation like this or not. We don't want to have anybody incur a lot of excess funds going
down the line and then finding out that the Council is not amenable to a situation like this. So we're
trying to keep you informed upfront.
We also .. .in, in going through this process we would like to have a resolution of support from the
Council and we've kind of drafted up one if. . .if we get that far.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Couch. Committee Members, for your information, we do have
Mr. Dowling in the gallery in case you have any questions for him as well for further clarification.
Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you, and thank you for this opportunity from the
Administration to allow us to provide some comments on this consideration. My first question is that
we were aware that the County has in the past considered a land swap to move this current site closer to
our... Lipoa Street by the Technology Park and the Kihei Golf Course. One, that we were made to
understand was that it was a little bit more central and that with the potential of the Up country connector
road, as well as some better soil conditions for future construction considerations, as well as with the
Council support to some ... purchase some lands makai of the road for the regional park, that that was an
opportunity. Can you tell us today that that is now no longer a consideration by your Department and
this Administration?
MR. COUCH: Yes, Council Chair. Back. .. gosh, I think it was 2003, we started talking about this land swap
and at that time it was a previous Council and that Council basically had said that they were not
interested in us ... at least it was our understanding that they were not interested in a swap if it included
us building a school on that. .. on the new property. So at that point, after looking at the minutes, that's,
that's what was ... what we came out of that and I think a couple ... several questions were brought up as
well about not having a school there. So basically, the Administration stopped that process at that time.
And then basically, we were going on with the regional park down below by Lokelani School and Hope
Chapel and hadn't pursued that any further.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, we were made aware of some of the difficulties of the current
site, the blue rock, the subsurface blue rock consideration, some of the ravines, to drainage that need to
construct spanning bridges or, or for road access and, and utilization for that 150 acres. And so again, I
can recall some of the concerns that was ... was shared and that an opportunity for us to look at
something possibly better to develop for. .. on, on the County's dollar was still a possibility. But I
appreciate your comments this morning. You know, I know that Mr. Dowling has a proven record of
with the .. .I believe the Kamalii School?
MR. COUCH: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Brought it under budget, ahead of schedule, and of course, the State
Department of Education got a great deal out of that, and I understand this has some similar. . .similar
parameters. And while I'm happy that the County would consider putting up to 72 acres for this
purpose, did the Department or the Administration consider asking the State can we swap lands so that
while we would provide you, since we have a good site ... potentially usable site for a school, that the
County would consider maybe in return receiving maybe up to 72 acres somewhere on Maui so that we
could consider opportunities such as affordable housing that the County would not need to purchase land
for. It would be in close proximity to current infrastructure that we could develop, put out an RFP, and
allow us to build housing without the high cost of land purchase.
MR. COUCH: We did consider that. We felt that the time it would take to do that land swap would effectively
kill any kind of rapid development of the high school. I mean we could still consider that but it's been
our opinion that dealing with the State and swapping something like that would take a, a relatively long
time.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, that's interesting, you know. I mean the State Administration has
come out publicly in their pronouncements of their support for affordable housing. Secondly, I would
think that if the Governor was willing to sign an agreement to work cooperatively over a period of time
and that it might be in parcels, you know, we may not need a 72-acre for 72, but maybe 15 acres here,
maybe Upcountry; 15 acres West Maui; 15 acres Central Maui. That we could have come out with
some kind of reasonable consideration so that the County could move forward and start really building
houses faster than what we've been told from the development community. And so again, I just ask that
I still think that's a reasonable consideration and would not delay the opportunity for South Maui to
have a public high school on, on this County property.
MR. COUCH: Mr. Chair,-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Couch.
MR. COUCH: --we can certainly ... because this Option Agreement doesn't require us to transfer the land until
Mr. Dowling has an agreement with the Department of Education, in that time we can certainly pursue
that. Identifying the lands might be difficult, but if we can get us a generic agreement from the
Governor or the State saying we'll give you 72 acres for these 72 acres, we can still pursue that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, and just so we're clear, Mr. Couch. We are ... you shared this
publicly more than once that, you know, Mr. Dowling will be required to have a executed agreement
with Department of Education. Eventually though there's monies that will be needed to be expended as
part of lease payments or, or, or some sort lease to purchase program. Is there any contingency that the
Legislature must either ratify or agree the funding that the Department of Education through its Board is
making a commitment to?
MR. COUCH: I believe so and I think Mr. Dowling can answer that more because he's been dealing with the
Department of Education and I believe we are under. .. we would like to get something in front of the
Legislature before the next legislative session. But if you would, I think Mr. Dowling has a better
answer for that.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any objections to having Mr. Dowling respond to the question from
Mr. Hokama?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Dowling, if you will come up to the lectern, and please state your name for the
record.
MR. DOWLING: Everett Dowling, Chair Molina and Council Members. Councilmember Hokama, yes, there
would be funding requirements from the Legislature. They would have to fund the lease payments on
the school and the lease would be a 30-year lease subject to a series of two-year leases. So it would be
15 two-year leases. One Legislature can't bind another one so it's ... we do have a little bit of risk there
that future Legislatures wouldn't appropriate the money for the lease payments. But I feel once the kids
are in there, the Legislature's gonna keep paying the rent. The .. .I think in terms of the concept of a
land swap the ... we're just trying to keep it very simple. The DOE has their own timetable and they've
got lot of demands for schools in various communities around the State.
We're trying to keep it very simple trying to expedite the project. So far we've done considerable
engineering and design work at my company's expense that I think if it's .. .if the County of Maui, the
Council, and Kihei Community Association, and Dowling Company can work cooperatively, and just
make it. .. make it an easy project for the State to say yes to. I think the more we try to add things to it
in terms of maybe land swaps or, or other things, it just becomes another reason for it to be delayed Of,
or not to do it. I'm just trying to keep it as simple as possible. Take a package to the Department of
Education, which is modeled after. . .in many ways, modeled after Kamalii Elementary School, with one
main exception.
And the main exception is Kamalii Elementary School, when we completed it, we sold it to the State of
Hawaii. This one since the budget is so huge, in terms of constructing a new high school from scratch,
the Department of Education would fund the design of the school and then once we get it to a point of
being permitted, and that means building permit, it means change of zoning has occurred, we're ready to
start construction. At that point the funding requirement shifts over to Dowling Company and we, we
finance it, we lease it back to the State. These payments from the State basically cover our mortgage
and at the end of the 30 years the State has the option to buy it at a dollar. The ... we aren't marking up
the land at all. The ... we're transferring the land to the State at the one dollar price that we're paying
the County. So we're just trying to keep it simple and make it an easy project for the State to say yes to.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Mr. Dowling. And I would agree, I would
like to keep it as simple as possible, too. But once again, the County of Maui is anteing up at its cost
that it took to purchase that property and if we can possibly work it out so that we can provide those
students' parents that you're trying to take care of from an educational point of view and we can take
care of their parents through a affordable housing point of view, then maybe we got two golden eggs
instead of one golden egg. And my point is we need to at least see if it can happen. If it cannot happen,
we're gonna need to decide shall we just go with the simple school only, but the County continues to put
up its assets, it uses its general fund, Chairman, to purchase and move this County forward. And I think
- 29 -

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

October 31, 2006

it's only fair that we ask the State if there's an opportunity that maybe we can have now this additional
golden egg opportunity which is to be able to construct and provide affordable housing on some State
property that, again, we're not. . .I'm not sure if there's an availability. I'm sure DLNR has a master
inventory list of all State properties, but if they would say we are in agreement, we support affordable
housing, which the Governor has pronounced, then opportunity can be made. At least we can at least go
back to our constituents, our residents, and say we asked, we tried. We made a reasonable attempt
without trying to hinder the progress of a South Maui public high school, Chairman. That's all I'm
asking for a consideration. But I understand the need for simplicity from Mr. Dowling's standpoint.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Your comments are well taken, Mr. Hokama. As always, it takes the County
to light a fire under the State and it seems like we're always having to initiate things to get things done
when what should be State responsibility primarily. While we have you here, Mr. Dowling, just
conceptually looking long-term, this projected high school, what type of amenities, if you will, will be
part of that school. Are we looking at air conditioning?
MR. DOWLING: It would be a.. .it would be a green school in terms of photovoltaic to help generate the
power for the school and reduce the long-term cost to the taxpayers. It would have a football field. It
would service 1,000 students. It would result in pulling about 800 existing students out of Baldwin High
School and Maui High School, thereby lessening the overcrowded situation in those schools. It's .. .it
would be constructed in one phase. It's adjacent to the police station site so there could be some cost
savings in terms of infrastructure, off-site infrastructure and on-site site work. We just. .. at this point
we've .. .I don't want to get into a situation where we're continuing to fund the design and engineering
without the County Council's support. And while I respect Councilmember Hokama's opinion and view
on it, I can see why you would feel the way you do. I don't want to be in the situation where we're
continuing to spend money and I don't know if we .. .if we have the land .. .if we have the County
Council support for the land or not. So I. . .if that is a condition, then we will freeze our efforts on the
project because I don't want to get into a situation where every month we're paying architects and
engineers to move forward a project in an accelerated timeframe and we don't know if we have land or
not. So I respect your opinion. I respect the desire for more affordable housing on Maui. But I think
it's ... from our standpoint I just don't want to get into a situation where we continue to expend money to
try to get a school built on an accelerated timeframe for the County of Maui and I know the Council
feels the need for a high school in Kihei also.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Dowling. I believe, Member Johnson, you had a question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Everett, for coming, and you know, even being willing to tackle
this very difficult and challenging property. One of the things that I'm looking at on the map because
our police station let's say would be situated in front of where the school campus would be with regard
to access both in and out of the school property, from what I'm looking at that would be I guess having
the school basically come around where you had ingress at one part of the campus, and then the egress
coming down the other part, or would there only be one access point for where the school would be?

- 30 -

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

October 31, 2006

MR. DOWLING: There would be two. We looked at a number of sites throughout South Maui. We selected
this site because of the signalized intersections. The ... and it lowers the cost of doing the project. We
can piggyback off the existing infrastructure. So there are two access points for the school.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and, and the one would be at least at the map I'm looking at the ...
(change tape, start 2B) . .. to the north of the proposed police station site would be. Is that correct?
MR. DOWLING: Correct. Correct. So it would serve both the police station and the school, and then the other
one is directly across the street. It's the signalized intersection at the Kamalii Elementary School.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh. And with regard to the property that of course we have are, you
know, assuming that this goes through, we have the remaining 65.8 acres which would be right now
what we had purchased as park. It's my .. .I guess by looking at this it's my understanding that at some
point you would have no problem if we had to access through the existing school site in terms of an
easement to get to the other property. That wouldn't be a problem?
MR. DOWLING: It wouldn't be a problem. I think it would actually be better than an easement. I think that
road could just be extended up mauka and the County would benefit from the State's investment in the
cost of that road.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I have no questions for Mr. Dowling.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, I'm sorry. Okay. Committee Members, any questions for Mr. Dowling? Member
Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Thank you. Thank you for being here to explain this seemingly simple
relationship. Of course, you know, all of us I think, you know, support having a high school in Kihei
that it's been lone .. .long overdue and it is really disappointing to me that it takes the County to step in
to try to accelerate the high school. Three of us on this Council are teachers ... were teachers, two of us
were high school teachers at Maui High School, and we knew back then when we were teaching, that
there was a school needed in Kihei. I left teaching in 1983 and the overcrowding at schools, and we
don't have to tell you this, overcrowding at schools is probably the number one cause of anti-social
behavior in the schools. So there certainly is not a question of whether or not we need a school in Kihei
and I'm very pleased that you have stepped to the plate and are trying to help with the situation just as
you did with the elementary school.
Your map that we got, Exhibit A, that's been presented to us. Are you familiar with this?
MR. DOWLING: Is that the site plan for the school?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES : Yes, it is.
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MR. DOWLING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So this ... the site plan for the school, is this in the conceptual stage right
now?
MR. DOWLING: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. DOWLING: It's in the conceptual stage but it has gone through a series of meetings with members of the
Kihei community and teachers and administrators who are in existing schools who provide us their
input.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh. I just noticed that the physical plant for the athletics and physical
educational programs are sort of at both ends of the campus almost with the football field being in one
area and the baseball, softball, soccer, and the gymnasium and pool, kind of in another area. Is it the
expectation that especially for the use of the football field that, you know, I'm gonna presume the locker
room is where the gymnasium is-MR. DOWLING: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --and that that distance will be fine for them to get down to the field-MR. DOWLING: We have ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --for their practices and things?
MR. DOWLING: Yes. There are two athletic directors from Maui who looked at it and they felt comfortable
with that. The location of the football field was .. .is more of a cost-savings issue.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. DOWLING: There's a... there's a nice slope there in terms of stadium seating.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. DOWLING: It really lowers the cost if we locate the football field there. So it is ... you're right. It is
isolated from the other play fields but it's just that we're just trying to keep the cost down.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. DOWLING: And, and the County of Maui, you know, without getting into finger-pointing I think it's for
whatever reason the school hasn't been developed and it's been needed for years. Now, the County is
stepping forward and making this land available to the State. That's a huge cost-savings for the State.
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We're just trying to get the cost down as much as possible so it's easier for the State to say yes, you
know, let's move it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So the 30-year mortgage you're speaking about is, is to pay the construction
and-MR. DOWLING: Site work.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --site work for this project?
MR. DOWLING: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Are you also doing it jointly with the Police Department? Is there a
coordination other than the off-site improvements between the Police Department and what you're
trying to do?
MR. DOWLING: We certainly would be open to that. We haven't. .. we haven't had any discussions with the
Police Department on that. We have spoken with Mr. Couch in terms of the, you know, the cost-savings
of bringing water and sewer, the cost-savings of maybe that entry road, one of the two entry roads, and
then the mass grading. We haven't seen the site plan for the police station yet so I don't know if the
police station has surplus material or if it' s in need of material.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. DOWLING: But all of those things we could ... we could work on a common grading plan to lower the
cost of the material and also if we do it at. .. do the construction at the same time, just the contractor
mobilization fees could be shared-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. DOWLING: --over the two projects so there would be cost-savings to both.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Tavares. Committee Members, any other questions for Mr. Dowling
before we ... okay, Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much, Everett, for providing us this information on a
proposal for a high school in Kihei. You mentioned about the sewer and water hook-up although this
doesn't show. As far as the sewer line, what are the plans for this particular school in, in the hook-up?
MR. DOWLING: The .. .in terms of?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Are you gonna go back to the treatment plant or you gonna come across
the highway?
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MR. DOWLING: We'd go back to the treatment plant.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: To the treatment plant?
MR. DOWLING: Right. But the school will also incorporate a number of. .. ofwater saving measures which
reduce water and also reduce the sewer flows in addition to reducing the water demand such as the dual
flush toilets, the waterless urinals, and using rain ... there's not a whole lot of rainwater in Kihei, but
some rainwater catchment, and then the drought resistant plants.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah. I was talking ... well, in my mind, you know, since you're gonna
go back to the plant the possibility of putting in a gray line for irrigation for some of the greenery, that's
gonna be proposed on the site?
MR. DOWLING: We thought of that. That's a great thought. That's, that's and once again it just. . .it reduces
the water. .. water demand. That's something that we definitely will be pursuing. And, and we did that
for Kamalii School also. We ... originally there was no gray water when we built the school but we put
in a dual system so that we could use gray water for the irrigation of landscaping Kamalii School.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chair. What level of certification for LEED are you trying to achieve with
this school?
MR. DOWLING: LEED Silver. .. at minimum LEED Silver-VICE-CHAIR KANE: Going for Silver.
MR. DOWLING: --and I think we still can do better than that. We ... we've got. .. right now we've got. ..
we've got, let me make sure, we have five projects that looks like we'll get LEED Gold on here on
Maui.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So ...
MR. DOWLING: Minimum Silver, but I think we can do better.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah. It's Silver, Gold, Platinum is ...
MR. DOWLING: Platinum will be tough.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, yeah.
MR. DOWLING: Platinum ...
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: As far as the levels so ...
MR. DOWLING: Right. Well, it's certified ... certified Silver, Gold, Platinum.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Okay. The other question is just to dovetail off of Member Tavares' questions
about incorporating the work for the potential police station. With respects to the Option Agreement, so
that if that is something that shows up that would be under Item 10, the modification and amendment
that would be something that would have to be through written instrument by both you and the County?
That's where that would take place if there's any changes to this Option Agreement as signed?
MR. DOWLING: I don't think that. . .I don't think the cooperation with the Kihei Police Station would require
modifying this agreement. I think it would be just a subsequent separate agreement.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: It will be a separate agreement?
MR. DOWLING: Right, and we'd be ... we'd be happy to do that. I should note one thing. It's 72 acres but
that includes an additional five acres for. .. we're just setting aside five acres for the Kihei Charter
School.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
MR. DOWLING: And that way if they get funding, they could build their school next to the public high school
and that would enable the students of the charter school to participate in the after school activities and
special programs that the high school would offer.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Finally, Mr. Chair, if I may? You talked about and I think Member
Tavares also brought up this point, oh, I'm sorry, Member. .. maybe it was Member Johnson, the road
extending up to access the mauka property. Are you talking about that road that kind of goes through
the center that's including the practice soccer field parking, softball/baseball field parking, that road? It
kind of dead ends there. You have a circle at the end.
MR. DOWLING: If! can .. .I could borrow one, please?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Johnson.
MR. DOWLING: It would be the road ... actually, it could be either road, but if it were the road on the right
hand side of the page,-VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
MR. DOWLING: --we would just. .. once we ... once we cross that gulch, we would just, or a matter of fact,
maybe even before we cross the gulch .. .
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Adjacent to the parking going up along the side up?
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MR. DOWLING: Exactly.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Okay.
MR. DOWLING: And the other road can also be extended.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and the only reason I bring that up is because you've got students .. .I mean this is
the same thing we talked about in West Maui when we talked about that parking or that road actually
going right in the middle of a campus that creates issues,-MR. DOWLING: Right.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --safety issues because you've got kids traversing back and forth. So, anyway, just-MR. DOWLING: The thought process-VICE-CHAIR KANE: --thinking out loud.
MR. DOWLING: --is that the road on the right hand side would be for administration and, and deliveries and
guests. The road on the left hand side would be for school buses and for students. The ... and then
you'll see at the top of the page, the two parking lots are connected, and then on the bottom of the page
there is a fire ... a fire road underneath of the performing arts center connecting the parking lot, that road
is closed. It's just for in case of emergency for the fire, fire traffic.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Dowling. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. The Chair has one question for you, Mr. Dowling, before we let
you go and thank you for making yourself available. I think this is a perfect setting for a model school
of the future. You know, one that is energy efficient, as you had mentioned earlier, and also one that can
offer I hope the best in high technology with the High Tech Park nearby. I presume this school will be
linked up technologically-wise. Would it be modeled somewhat like that of Kapolei High School on
Oahu? Is that what your ... you guys are looking at?
MR. DOWLING: I think we can do much ... that's the ... that's the newest school, but I think we can do a much
better job than that. That school it's .. .it has a lot of. . .it doesn't have much natural daylight compared
to what we're doing. The test scores ... studies have shown the test scores are about 23 percent higher in
math for students who have a lot of natural daylight in the classroom as opposed to students who do not
have a lot of natural daylight. So we're trying to get as much natural daylight in as possible both for the
work environment for the faculty, for the benefit of the students, and also for all the taxpayers to just
lower the energy cost. That. .. that's a good school but I think we can do ... technology's changed. I
think the awareness of green building and sustainability has really increased and that school doesn't
have photovoltaic. That school doesn't have any measures to reduce water usage or power usage and all
of those factors being built into this school.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Dowling. We appreciate you coming here to share
your thoughts with us on this matter.
MR. DOWLING: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Kane, I believe you had a question for the Administration or has that question
already been answered?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No, just. .. and I know it rewinds all the way back to I believe Mr. Couch's opening
remarks or actually responding to Mr. Hokama. And I was just hoping that we could get some sort of
validation of your comments regarding how you folks arrived at discussions with this body, gave you ...
led you to conclude that we weren't interested in the other. . .in the property and so we went in a
different direction. And so I'm just asking for you to provide a reference point to those ... to how you
folks arrived at your conclusion to bring us to where we're at now versus what Mr. Hokama was talking
about earlier, you know, the other land option that we had. Because I know you had mentioned it was
from the previous Council term-MR. COUCH: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --so that was in the beginning of your folk's term.
MR. COUCH: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So if you can provide and I don't expect you to recite that off the top of your head but if
there's minutes that you ... that you're referring to if we can get the reference point, provide that to the
Committee, and-MR. COUCH: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --that will be helpful for us.
MR. COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Couch.
MR. COUCH: Yeah. I believe that's what we're looking at - a committee report or minutes. It's been so long
now, but I believe I have it in myoid files. I have the ...
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Chair, depending on what your recommendation and your intent is for this
particular item today, it's not pressing for me. I was just, you know, validating comments on how they
arrived at something based on what we did. So I just wanted to have an opportunity to view that to see
if what they're saying is how they arrived at it was as accurate as it mayor may not be.
CHAIR MOLINA: See if there's a rational nexus, right? ... (chuckles) . .. Put it in legal terms I guess. Okay.
Members, any other questions for the Administration or Corporation Counsel? Member Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I just wanted to find out because I can't recall what we originally paid
for this property but is there a valuation on the worth of the 72 acres that we're looking at currently? Is
there an established value other than the dollar that we would be leasing it for?
MR. COUCH: At this point we don't have one in the ... at the time of exercising the option and selling the land,
we would have that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I just would appreciate knowing that-MR. COUCH: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --so that if we're going to pursue something along the lines of what
Mr. Hokama's indicating that at least we'd have that. Mr. Chair, I have no, no other questions. Thank
you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Mr. Couch.
MR. COUCH: Mr. Chair, just for clarification on Councilmember Johnson's, do you want the assessed value
that the County assessed now for tax purposes or would you have us pay for an appraisal?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. I don't need you to pay for an appraisal. I just think what we paid
originally for the land, at least have some idea of what the worth would be. I can't recall, you know,
what we paid for it originally, but just some ballpark idea of what the worth of it would be.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. Before we go any further, the Chair would like to call
for a brief recess. Please don't leave the chambers. .., (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

11:59 a.m.

RECONVENE:

12:02 p.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel) . .. The October 31, 2006 Committee of the Whole meeting is now back in
session. Members, the Chair would like to ask if you have any final comments or questions for the
Administration or Corporation Counsel before the Chair gives his recommendation? Seeing none. Prior
to the Chair's recommendation, we'd like to thank the Administration and Mr. Dowling for sharing their
thoughts with this long-term future proposal for a high school in Kihei. It's good to see the wheels are
starting to turn slowly but surely on this much needed school for this part of our island. And again, just
to let everyone know, we don't have any formal resolution to consider at this point. This is just
informational sharing from the Administration as to what has been talked about with regards to a
potential school in the area. So I would like to ask Mr. Couch if he has any final comments to clarify the
Chair's statements.
MR. COUCH: Mr. Chair, thank you. If you are so inclined, I have a possible draft language of a resolution if
you would be interested, and I don't know if you can bring that up now other than just take a look at it.
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CHAIR MOLINA: I don't know if that's appropriate at this time but maybe if I could get a.. .I'm sure we'll
discuss this issue at a future point.
MR. COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: So maybe then when we have a more concrete proposal with language that has been
thoroughly thought out, then that is something for either this Councilor a future Council can consider.
Member Johnson, followed by Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. At this point in time I think from at least from what I'm
hearing from Administration they want an indication of whether or not this body is supportive of moving
forward either with the lease, or you know, with the outright purchase for a dollar. And I can only say
my own opinion would be I have no problem at all moving forward with this issue or at least working
with Administration so that at some point we come forward with the formal resolution for adoption and
then also exploring if there were other side agreements with regard to other lands available. But my
personal preference would be to enter into some type of a lease leaving open the option at a later time to
do exactly what Council Chair Hokama had recommended so that it doesn't interfere with the school
being moved forward but just moving forward with the lease. But then perhaps leaving for later
negotiation the possibility of land acquisition with regard to other lands that the State would have
available so that could be a subsequent agreement converting perhaps the lease to an outright swap or
purchase. So that is my thought and I. . .I'm open to anything that would come forward at a future
meeting. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. I'm sure many of us feel we should always look at win-win
situations for both sides as well. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chairman. I don't have any objections with having this particular item
filed. And you know, whether other Members agree or not, it seems appropriate that if the
Administration and/or Mr. Dowling is looking for some sort of signal that we have a resolution
introduced at the Council level, whether it gets approved at Councilor if it goes back to Committee,
whether we're dealing with timing issues, I mean, you know, Council Chair Hokama as our Chair can
have that discussion if Mr. Couch on behalf of the Administration wants to submit something for us to
look at. You know, we've had the discussion. I mean unless Members have other questions regarding
the Option Agreement which is really the vehicle to assist along with the discussion at the State level for
them, you know, to move forward.
But, you know, I think the, the best signal is ... and I say this because earlier, you know, the concern and
thus, the change of direction or to scratch one idea and go towards where we are today was a result of
maybe one comment made by myself or another Member in a... at a point in time in the past which was
based on the information that was given to us at the time. And so to avoid that type of thing I think it's
important that if they want a signal, then give us a resolution that we can do a formal vote on and then,
you know, then it's up or down based on the merit of the resolution. And I think that's the best way that
the Administration and the related parties can get their, you know, their piece of paper to go later on, eh,
you guys voted, you know, it was an official action, et cetera. So my two cents. I think that's the best
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way that we can achieve ... Administration, Mr. Dowling, and any other related party can achieve some
sense of direction from this body as a policy direction. That's the way to do it in my opinion. Thank
you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Any other final comments as to ... prior to the Chair's
recommendation on this matter? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I think Mr. Kane brings up a good option for future
consideration. You know, the way we have chosen to, through your direction, to post for today there's
no indication of a resolution consideration. So, you know, this will have some momentum and I would
prefer to do it right. And ifMr. Couch and the Administra ... others in Administration wish to move this
forward, that I would also ask them to ensure that they can respond to the Council that we have followed
the purposes of this position of County real property as stated in Maui County Code 3.44.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
recommendation? Member Johnson.

Any other final thoughts before the Chair makes his

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. My, my only thought would be because I know sometimes it's I guess
confusing as to who crafts policy, but basically, I think that for me I would prefer keeping this in
Committee and working with the Administration to draft based on whatever, you know, is to be
presented at perhaps the next meeting. I think Mr. Dowling made a very good point and that is time is
really important to him because he's trying to move forward with this particular project. If we file this
now because we're coming to the end of term, I think that it's important for us and to the Kihei
community and because Member Anderson is not here today to really speak for her community, I just
would prefer that we entertain that kind of an option, keep it in Committee, but work with
Administration to as this being the agenda item coming forward and then having some type of resolution
for us to act on perhaps next time with answers to some of the questions. Because time-wise coming to
the end of term everything's going to start to get filed and I'd rather give an indication to the Kihei
community and also to Mr. Dowling now rather than later because more than likely by the time it goes
through all the referrals, gets put on Council agenda, gets referred as a communication item, it's just,
you know, another delay. So that would be my respectful request is to keep this in Committee and work
with Administration to bring something forward. So that's my thought,-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --but it's whatever the body wants.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I respectfully disagree that it should be kept open. And in fact,
what was described was the process is going to even take much longer. I think what we're suggesting or
I've suggested is if we file this and working ... Administration working with the Council Chair to get a
formal resolution on the floor, then you can have your official position of this Council relative to this
issue acted on in a very short period of time, much shorter than keeping this open, having resolution
done, bringing it back to the next meeting, voting on the resolution out of Committee, bringing it back to
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the full Council, you know, that's not even with the referral. Because there is no referral, if you keep
this open, you can have the direct referral right in and have the resolution there. I'm suggesting filing
this getting it right to the Council because of the timeframe, because of the lack of time we have, this
thing can be acted on in a very short period of time potentially ... potentially. So, you know, again you
can confer with your Staff to see if you want to keep this open, leave it in Committee, and decide
whether or not there's too much substance for it to be acted on the floor, that's something that the
Council Chair can describe ... discuss with Administration and you as our Committee Chair. But again,
if they're looking for a signal, then I didn't hear any signal of negativity in this meeting. But I think
they deserve more than just a signal. They deserve a resolution with us voting up or down on the merit
of the resolution. And it's up to Administration to come forward with the resolution that has merit for
favorable consideration and I think with the intent by Mr. Couch and the Council Chair and his
comments this morning as the Committee Member, it looks like we're heading in the right direction. So
I mean and that's my final comments, Mr. Chair, before your recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. Any other thoughts, Members? Okay. Chair would like to take
a minute to confer with Staff. Meeting in recess. .., (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

12:13 p.m.

RECONVENE:

12:15 p.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: .. , (gavel). . . The first. .. October 31, 2006, Committee of the Whole meeting is now back
in session. Thank you for that break, Members. Okay, the Chair has heard two options. The Chair will
present you with a third ... (laughter) . .. or maybe a hybrid of the two options that's been proposed.
The Chair would like the body to consider keeping the item open. The item will file automatically at the
end of the term. Now, the Administration, should they choose to submit a resolution prior to the end of
the term to the Council Chair for something that could be acted on the floor, that is one consideration
that can be done. However, if the body feels that it will take some I guess long, drawn out discussions to
deal with this matter, it can then be referred to Committee as an option. So there's a number of options
to consider or the Administration can submit the resolution directly to the Committee itself where at a
later point in this term if there is time, it can be discussed. But either way I see this as a long-term issue
that I don't foresee being resolved until probably by the next Council. So that's an option to consider
and keep open and it automatically files at the end of the term and that's what the Chair's throwing out
to you. Comments? Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Move to defer, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I have no objections to deferral.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright. That was simple. The motion's been made to defer by Member Kane,
seconded by Member. .. who do we give it to ...Member Tavares in this case? Okay. Any discussion?
Seeing none. All those in favor of the motion to defer signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Pontanilla,
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Anderson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Chair will mark it 8-0 with one excusal, Member Anderson. Well, thank you very
much, Members, for a very productive day. The Chair wants to thank you all for your professionalism
and dedication and a very, very happy and safe Halloween, and please those of you watching, watch out
for the little ghosts and goblins that will be roaming our streets tonight. So are there any other
announcements aside from the fact that we do have a Budget and Finance meeting at 1:30 under the
directorship of Mr. Kane. Members, please be prompt at 1:30. Thank you for today's, October 31,
2006, meeting.
are now adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..
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